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The Zaccheus Dunn House sits approximately 100 yards off
East Lake Drive and is reached by a dirt lane locally known as
0ld Farm Road. Originally a farmhouse, it sits on a slight hill
overlooking a small pond which the owners intend to convert into
a wildlife preserve.

The Dunn House is a 2 1/2 story Flemish bond brick building
with glazed headers on all four walls. The west wall has the
initials "z D D" (Zzaccheus and Deborah Dunn) and the date of
construction "1743" in glazed headers. An interesting aspect
about the brickwork is the fact that the headers on the first
floor level are slightly smaller in size than those on the second
floor, possibly suggesting that the Dunns added the second floor
a few years after construction of the first.

The house has a box cornice, water table, and a pent roof
(which has been temporarily removed for repairs). There are
two inside end chimneys, one of which is parapeted. The windows
have 12 lights over 8 lights:» The sashes are not original, but
have been reproduced exactly like the originals, including the
wide muntin bars. Above the sashes on the exterior are brick
hoodmolds. ‘ :

Inside, the original house consisted of two rooms on each
floor. During the early nineteenth century, the original parti-
tions were removed to make one large room per floor. Restoration
drawings call for the reinstallation of the partitions. Each
room has its original random width hardwood floors. There are
four fireplaces, the two on the west side being corner fireplaces
and the two on the east side being centrally placed. Each
fireplace has its original paneling above and around the mantles.
The interior doors are all planked batten doors. An additional
wing that Stephan Decatur built to house his kitchen was torn
down in 1950 and replaced by a one story fram lean-to shed.

Early in the nineteenth century, the cellar was excavated and
currently serves as the kitchen and den.

Restoration activities, which recently began; call for the
recreation of the original appearance, including the reproduction
of the Decatur wing.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
The Dunn House has significance in several catagories.

ARCHITECTURE: The Dunn House is one of the more significant
extant examples of mid-eighteenth century architecture in Salem
County. Built in 1743, the Dunn House, with its glazed headers
and pattern work to memorialize the original owners, typllifies
the style of construction that became prevalent in this area
during the eighteenth century. The interior floor plan, especially
the positioning of the stairway immediately to one side of the
fireplace, was also characteristic of early architecture in
South Jersey. Furthermore, the house escaped the "modernization"
of the Victorian period which destroyed the integrity of so many
colonial homes. Although not unique in appearance and design,
the brickwork, interior floor plan, mantles, and paneling are
characteristic of South Jersey architecture. The Dunn House
vividly illustrates the type of home occupied by the average
colonial farmer of moderate means.

MILITARY: The house has military significance in that between
1803 and 1810 it served as the residence of Stephan Decatur.
One of America's first naval heroes, Decatur captured three
French privateers off Cape May during the Quasi War of 1798.
Decatur's son of the same name became equally famous during the
War of 1812. 1In 1810, Decatur sold the house to John Pissant,
who served as a major in the Gloucester County militia during
the War of 1812.

RELIGION: The original owner, Zaccheus Dunn, was a French
Huguenot who fled France after the revocation of the Edict of
Nantes. After a respite in England, the Dunns set out for
America. They are the only known Huguenots to have fled France
and settled in Salem County to seek religious freedom.
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